

Senate Bill No. 216—Committee on
Legislative Operations and Elections

CHAPTER.....

AN ACT relating to elections; requiring each county and city clerk to schedule certain meetings with each Indian tribe located in whole or in part within the county or city; requiring the Secretary of State to allow a member of an Indian tribe who resides on an Indian reservation or Indian colony to use the system of approved electronic transmission to register to vote and request and cast a ballot; and providing other matters properly relating thereto.

Legislative Counsel's Digest:

Existing law authorizes an Indian tribe to submit a request to a county or city clerk to establish a polling place or ballot drop box within the boundaries of an Indian reservation or Indian colony on the day of an election or for early voting. (NRS 293.2733, 293.3572, 293C.2675, 293C.3572) **Sections 2 and 4** of this bill require each county and city clerk to schedule certain meetings with each Indian tribe located in whole or in part within the county or city to discuss certain details relating to the next regularly scheduled election cycle.

Existing law requires the Secretary of State to establish a system of approved electronic transmission through which certain military and overseas voters and electors and registered voters with a disability may register to vote, apply for a ballot and cast a ballot. (NRS 293.269951, 293D.200) **Section 3.5** of this bill requires the Secretary of State to allow electors and registered voters who are tribal members and who reside on an Indian reservation or Indian colony to register to vote and apply for and cast a ballot using the system of approved electronic transmission.

EXPLANATION – Matter in ***bolded italics*** is new; matter between brackets ~~omitted material~~ is material to be omitted.

THE PEOPLE OF THE STATE OF NEVADA, REPRESENTED IN
SENATE AND ASSEMBLY, DO ENACT AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1. Chapter 293 of NRS is hereby amended by adding thereto the provisions set forth as sections 2 and 3 of this act.

Sec. 2. 1. *Each county clerk shall schedule a meeting with each Indian tribe located in whole or in part within the county for, to the extent practicable:*

(a) Not later than August 1 of each odd-numbered year to discuss the details for the next regularly scheduled election cycle. Such a meeting may address, without limitation:

(1) The establishment and operation of polling places, temporary branch polling places or ballot drop boxes within an Indian reservation or Indian colony and the size requirements for any such polling places and temporary branch polling places;



(2) *The dates and times of the upcoming elections for which polling places, temporary branch polling places or ballot drop boxes may be established;*

(3) *The deadlines relating to the next regularly scheduled election cycle for the Indian tribe to submit a request pursuant to NRS 293.2733 and 293.3572 for the establishment of polling places, temporary branch polling places or ballot drop boxes;*

(4) *Responsibilities for the recruitment of election board officers; and*

(5) *Any other information relating to the establishment and operation of polling places, temporary branch polling places and ballot drop boxes;*

(b) *Not later than September 1 of each odd-numbered year to confirm any details relating to the establishment and operation of a polling place, temporary branch polling places or ballot drop boxes. Such a meeting may address, without limitation:*

(1) *Whether the Indian tribe will request or has requested to establish any polling places, temporary branch polling places or ballot drop boxes within an Indian reservation or Indian colony and the size requirements for any such polling places and temporary branch polling places;*

(2) *The days and hours of any polling place or temporary branch polling place established within an Indian reservation or Indian colony;*

(3) *Election board officers for any polling place or temporary branch polling place established within an Indian reservation or Indian colony; and*

(4) *The deadlines relating to the next regularly scheduled election cycle for the Indian tribe to submit a request pursuant to NRS 293.2733 and 293.3572; and*

(c) *On an ongoing basis during the year of an election if an Indian tribe elects to establish any polling places or temporary branch polling places within an Indian reservation or Indian colony.*

2. *If a county clerk:*

(a) *Is unable to make contact with an Indian tribe to carry out the requirements of subsection 1, the county clerk shall contact the Secretary of State to facilitate contact; or*

(b) *Has not contacted an Indian tribe, a representative of the Indian tribe may contact the Secretary of State to facilitate contact.*

3. *The tribal liaison designated by the Office of the Secretary Of State pursuant to NRS 233A.260 may assist the county clerk or*



an Indian tribe to facilitate any contact required pursuant to this section.

Sec. 3. (Deleted by amendment.)

Sec. 3.5. NRS 293.269951 is hereby amended to read as follows:

293.269951 1. The Secretary of State shall allow:

(a) ~~[An elector with a disability]~~ *The following electors* to use the system of approved electronic transmission established pursuant to NRS 293D.200 to register to vote in every election where the system of approved electronic transmission is available to a covered voter to register to vote ~~[. The deadline for an elector with a disability to use the system of approved electronic transmission to register to vote is the same as the deadline set forth in NRS 293D.230 for a covered voter to register to vote.] :~~

(1) An elector with a disability; and

(2) An elector who is a tribal member and who resides on an Indian reservation or Indian colony.

(b) ~~[A]~~ *The following* registered ~~[voter with a disability]~~ voters to use the system of approved electronic transmission established pursuant to NRS 293D.200 to apply for and cast a ballot in every election where the system of approved electronic transmission is available to a covered voter to request and cast a military-overseas ballot ~~[. The deadlines for a registered voter with a disability to use the system of approved electronic transmission to request and cast a ballot are the same as the deadlines set forth in NRS 293D.310 and 293D.400 for a covered voter to request and cast a military-overseas ballot.] :~~

(1) A registered voter with a disability; and

(2) A registered voter who is a tribal member and who resides on an Indian reservation or Indian colony.

2. *The deadline to use the system of approved electronic transmission:*

(a) To register to vote for an elector pursuant to paragraph (a) of subsection 1 is the same as the deadline set forth in NRS 293D.230 for a covered voter to register to vote.

(b) To apply for ballot for a registered voter pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 1, is the same as the deadline set forth in NRS 293D.310 for a covered voter to request and cast a military-overseas ballot.

(c) To cast a ballot for a registered voter pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 1, is the same as the deadline set forth in NRS 293D.400 for a covered voter to request and cast a military-overseas ballot.



3. Upon receipt of an application and ballot cast by a person ~~[with a disability using]~~ *authorized pursuant to subsection 1 to use* the system of approved electronic transmission established pursuant to NRS 293D.200, the local elections official shall affix, mark or otherwise acknowledge receipt of the application and ballot by means of a time stamp on the application.

~~[3-]~~ 4. The Secretary of State shall ensure that ~~[an elector with a disability or a registered voter with a disability]~~ *a person who is authorized pursuant to subsection 1* may provide his or her digital signature or electronic signature on any document or other material that is necessary for the elector or registered voter to register to vote, apply for a ballot or cast a ballot, as applicable.

~~[4-]~~ 5. The Secretary of State shall prescribe the form and content of a declaration for use by ~~[an elector with a disability or a registered voter with a disability]~~ *a person authorized pursuant to subsection 1* to swear or affirm specific representations pertaining to identity, eligibility to vote, status as such an elector or registered voter and timely and proper completion of a ballot.

~~[5-]~~ 6. The Secretary of State shall prescribe the duties of the county clerk upon receipt of a ballot sent by a registered voter ~~[with a disability using]~~ *authorized pursuant to subsection 1 to use* the system of approved electronic transmission, including, without limitation, the procedures to be used in accepting, handling and counting the ballot.

~~[6-]~~ 7. The Secretary of State shall make available to ~~[an elector with a disability or a registered voter with a disability]~~ *a person authorized pursuant to subsection 1* information regarding instructions on using the system for approved electronic transmission to register to vote and apply for and cast a ballot.

~~[7-]~~ 8. The Secretary of State shall adopt any regulation necessary to carry out the provisions of this section.

~~[8-]~~ 9. As used in this section:

(a) “Covered voter” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 293D.030.

(b) “Digital signature” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 720.060.

(c) “Electronic signature” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 719.100.

(d) “Military-overseas ballot” has the meaning ascribed to it in NRS 293D.050.



Sec. 4. Chapter 293C of NRS is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to read as follows:

1. Each city clerk shall schedule a meeting with each Indian tribe located in whole or in part within the city for, to the extent practicable:

(a) Not later than August 1 of each odd-numbered year to discuss the details for the next regularly scheduled election cycle. Such a meeting may address, without limitation:

(1) The establishment and operation of polling places, temporary branch polling places or ballot drop boxes within an Indian reservation or Indian colony and the size requirements for any such polling places and temporary branch polling places;

(2) The dates and times of the upcoming elections for which polling places, temporary branch polling places or ballot drop boxes may be established;

(3) The deadlines relating to the next regularly scheduled election cycle for the Indian tribe to submit a request pursuant to NRS 293C.2675 and 293C.3572 for the establishment of polling places, temporary branch polling places or ballot drop boxes;

(4) Responsibilities for the recruitment of election board officers; and

(5) Any other information relating to the establishment and operation of polling places, temporary branch polling places and ballot drop boxes;

(b) Not later than September 1 of each odd-numbered year to confirm any details relating to the establishment and operation of polling places, temporary branch polling places or ballot drop boxes. Such a meeting may address, without limitation:

(1) Whether the Indian tribe will request or has requested to establish any polling places, temporary branch polling places or ballot drop boxes within an Indian reservation or Indian colony and the size requirements for any such polling places and temporary branch polling places;

(2) The days and hours of any polling place or temporary branch polling place established within an Indian reservation or Indian colony;

(3) Election board officers for any polling place or temporary branch polling place established within an Indian reservation or Indian colony; and

(4) The deadlines relating to the next regularly scheduled election cycle for the Indian tribe to submit a request pursuant to NRS 293C.2675 and 293C.3572; and



(c) On an ongoing basis during the year of an election if an Indian tribe elects to establish any polling places or temporary branch polling places within an Indian reservation or Indian colony.

2. If a city clerk:

(a) Is unable to make contact with an Indian tribe to carry out the requirements of subsection 1, the city clerk shall contact the Secretary of State to facilitate contact; or

(b) Has not contacted an Indian tribe, a representative of the Indian tribe may contact the Secretary of State to facilitate contact.

3. The tribal liaison designated by the Office of the Secretary Of State pursuant to NRS 233A.260 may assist a city clerk or an Indian tribe to facilitate any contact required pursuant to this section.

Sec. 5. 1. This section becomes effective upon passage and approval.

2. Sections 1 to 4, inclusive, of this act become effective:

(a) Upon passage and approval for the purposes of adopting regulations and performing any other preparatory administrative tasks; and

(b) On January 1, 2024, for all other purposes.

